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 Attachment 1-3 

 
Chairman Weisz:  Opened Hearing on HB 1519. 
    
Rep. Ben Koppleman, District 16:  Introduced HB 1519. This bill makes basically two 
changes.  It adds the autism spectrum disorder to the list of uses for medical marijuana and 
it relaxes the restriction on juveniles use when a doctor has recommended that as the proper 
approach.  I think our testimony will be focused on what this bill will change and not on the 
way medical marijuana works.  1:31 
 
Alexa Johnson, Resident West Fargo: In Support of HB 1519.  Two of my six children have 
autism.  Ronnie, child present, is 9 years old.  He bangs his head on floors and walls and on 
a daily basis.  If you touch the back of his head he screams and he has a bump there.  We 
cannot get it to heal.   His pharmaceuticals are failing.  I instigated this bill because I want to 
take better care of my son.  Please give him access to cannabis.  Please give a Do Pass 
recommendation to HB 1519.  I have enclosed in my testimony more people that are in favor 
of this bill. (See Attachment 1)  
 
Ardell Rae Stafne-Nelson, Resident of Hettinger:   In support of HB 1519. The mother of 
Craig Nelson, a son that has autism.  If he lives until February 11th he will be 49 years old.  
From the time he was a little baby there was something different about him.  He started 
slapping his head and then banging his head.   Over the years he continued to bang his head 
and he didn’t interact with his brother.  He loved trains and he had to have pills to be able to 
go on the train.  He has so much damage in his brain it cuts off the nerves that go to his 
limbs.  Very emotionally supports HB 1519 because her son is not thriving.   I see this as 
Craig and Ronnie’s law because they need cannabis, there is enough research to show it 
works. (See Attachment 2).  End 11:00 

   
Terry Kemmet, Resident of North Dakota: In support of HB 1519:  I am a friend of Alexa.  
This group and its purpose to exist is to help the people of North Dakota.  How many in this 
group has read the resolutions at the Republican Convention.  I expected to find a lot of fault 
with them but I didn’t find much.  The whole purpose of this committee is to give the best to 
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help the people with their problems.  We need to read the labels on vaccines and other things 
to help the people.  I am on a oversite committee of the North Dakota Health Department, I 
would urge you to read the labels and find out what is going on here.  I recommend a do pass 
on HB 1519.   End 15:30 
   
Chairman Weisz:  Are there any questions?  Seeing none. Further Support for HB 1519. 
  
Jody Vetter, Resident of North Dakota:    I am in full support of HB 1519 and I recommend 
a Do Pass.  (Attachment 3) 15:59 – 16:57. 
 
Chairman Weisz:   Any further testimony in support?   
 
Chris Nolden, Resident of North Dakota: I support of HB 1519.  I see that autism spectrum 
has been added to the conditions list.  There is mountains of scientific data that it should be 
on our list.  As far as pediatric medicine goes, I fully agree there should be a Doctor’s 
recommendation to have a higher concentrate amount.  I urge a do pass on HB 1519.   
 
Chairman Weisz:  Any further testimony in support?  Any opposition?  Seeing none. 
 

      Hearing closed.   
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to debilitating   medical conditions and usable marijuana for minors under the 
medical marijuana program. 
 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1-2 

 
Chairman Weisz: Opened the hearing on HB 1519.   
 
Rep. Westlind:  In HB 1519 with the proposed amendments there has been added about 8 
different conditions.  (See Attachment 1 and 2) 
 
Rep. M. Ruby:  I move to amend HB 1519 with proposed amendment to remove Section 2, 
3, 4 and under section 1 add, see list on (Attachment 1) 
 
Chairman Weisz:  Does anyone have any problem with the list of conditions that this would 
add?  
 
Rep. Rohr:  What term are we using for anxiety? 
 
Rep. M. Ruby:  DSM it has the definition for anxiety disorder.  There are about 5 of these 
that already could be under chronic pain.   
 
Rep. Damschen:  I have a problem with a lot of the conditions.  There is research that proves 
it isn’t that effective. 
 
Chairman Weisz:  When you look at the data it is peer research and we don’t have the type 
of research like we have in other areas.  I guess what we are saying is we are giving them 
the ability to try it.  If you think it works and if it doesn’t then they can quit.  We are not saying 
that this will work. 
 
Rep. Skroch:  I know how difficult this all is.  If we don’t get this right, we will be facing 
recreational marijuana.  We have all weighed this really heavily and I hope we can allow for 
a little more give in these things.  If this doesn’t fix anything then this is wasted time. 
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Rep. Damschen:  I think it is our duty as legislators that we don’t make it so available that 
they don’t want recreational.  If we make this so loose that recreational can get it, then we 
failed. 
 
Rep. M. Ruby:  One of the other parts we discussed in the Interim was that the legislative 
management shall consider studying the list of debilitating medical conditions under the 
medical marijuana program to determine the appropriateness of the list. Including whether 
conditions should be added or removed.  If we look at this in the next interim, that would be 
a thought. 
 
Rep. Schneider:  I think that is a good idea, also there is some security in the fact that these 
are all debilitating conditions that have been included in the laws of other states.  By the time 
we get to a study there may be information from those other places that would justify our 
keeping this list.    
 
Rep. Westlind:  There is an emergency clause in Section 3.  Should we leave that on there?  
 
Chairman Weisz:  We can leave that on because if we don’t get 2/3 of the vote everything 
is gone.   
 
Rep. Dobervich:  Seconded.   
 
Voice vote taken:  Motion carried to amend HB 1519. 
 
Rep. Porter:  I would move to further amend inside of Section 1 remove subsection 38 and 
40 on page two.   
 
Rep. M. Ruby:  Seconded. 
 
Voice Vote taken:  Motion carried to further amend HB 1519. 
 
Chairman Weisz:  Any further amendments.  Seeing none. 
 
Rep. Westlind:  I move a Do Pass as amended on HB 1519. 
 
Rep. Dobervich:  Seconded. 
 
Roll Call vote was taken:   Yes   11  No  2  Absent 1.  Motion carried. 
 
Rep. M. Ruby:  Will carry the bill. 
 
Hearing closed. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill relating to debilitating medical conditions under the medical marijuana program; to 
provide for a legislative management study; and to declare an emergency. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachments # 1 - 3 

 
Chair Lee: Opened the hearing on HB 1519.   
 
Representative Ben Koppelman, District 16: Introduced HB 1519 and provided 
testimony from Ardell Rae Stafne-Nelson. Please see Attachment #1 for testimony. 
Section 1 of this bill adds additional conditions to which medical marijuana could be 
recommended. In the House, they combined several bills and put all the conditions in HB 
1519. The autism spectrum disorder line item, this was brought to me by a constituent who 
has a child with severe autism. This is consistent with the testimony I presented to you. They 
believe this might be a less harmful option to try before going to some of the more severe 
pharmaceuticals.  
Section 2 is an interim study recommendation. That would try to quantify whether or not we 
should be here each time going over individual conditions, to try to answer the question, 
should we rely on the medical professional to make the recommendation or should the 
Department of Health make that call.  
 
(4:00) Vice Chairman Larsen: If we’re adding a few more conditions, what would the total 
conditions be under the legislation? 
 
Representative Koppelman: In my count I thought it was about a dozen that were added 
by this bill. 
 
(4:50) Representative Pamela Anderson, District 41: I had a bill with more conditions in it 
than Representative Koppleman had. During the House, we combined our bills. The 
conditions I had added were for anorexia and bulimia, anxiety disorder which is specified, 
turrets syndrome, Ehlers-Danlos syndrome, endometriosis, opiate use, migraines, and 
rheumatoid arthritis. This is what other states are adding with medical marijuana. I think the 
one that is most important is opiate use and withdrawal. I would ask a do pass.  
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(6:15) Senator Roers: Would you be willing to give us a list as to what came as a constituent 
request and what came from other laws. I struggle a little with one person asking for 
something and changing law to include it. Have you received any information on traumatic 
brain injury (TBI)?  
 
Representative Pamela Anderson: The only constituent request was the Ehlers-Danlos 
syndrome. I have not received any information on TBI.  
 
Vice Chairman Larsen: I was on a beach in L.A. where you could get this. They had the 
listing of the conditions. One of them was nausea. Is that one that was brought forward to 
your group? 
 
Representative Pamela Anderson: The nausea we talked about with cancer, in the original 
bill, but I didn’t add it here. I think any medical professional should be able to add any 
condition, because they would know what would help versus us adding it to statute. I would 
encourage you to be more broad. 
 
Senator Anderson: I think it is interesting that it is fairly well documented that the gateway 
drug for many addicts is marijuana. Here we had opioid withdrawal listed as something this 
is supposed to be curing. That is very interesting.  
 
Representative Pamela Anderson: I don’t think medical marijuana is a gateway drug. 
Recreational marijuana, I would have that discussion, but medical marijuana no.  
 
Chair Lee: I also wish it would cure it everyone’s problems the way everyone thinks it will. I 
fear there will be disappointed people.  
 
Senator Roers: One of the things I heard as a concern with opioid disorder and opioid 
withdrawal, is often patients who have had that, are also on a contract with their medical 
provider, say for chronic pain, to be able to receive a certain amount. They also have to do 
routine drug monitoring, to make sure they aren’t supplementing their pain medication with 
other drugs. One of the tests is for marijuana and that will nullify their pain contract. We need 
to be careful with that particular one, we need to make sure we don’t fix one problem and 
cause another.  
 
(10:30-12:13) Steven James Peterson, Lobbyist for The Committee for Compassionate 
Care of North Dakota: Testified in support of HB 1519. Please see Attachment #2 for 
testimony. I was doing liaison work, collecting information with the deputy director of the 
New Jersey Medical Marijuana Program, and a few other states to get the medical studies 
and other information regarding the opiate abuse syndrome and the opiate addiction aspects. 
I can get you those studies. I am in support of the conditions being added to this, the only 
feedback, I heard from the hospital networks, they would like to see us step away from 
conditions and switch to symptoms, so they would be able to address symptoms that people 
have instead of waiting until people are diagnosed.  
 
(13:38-19:15) Chris Nolden, North Dakota citizen: I stand in full support. Besides HB 1283, 
this is the bread and butter to help the program, to have more legitimate conditions listed to 
help more people. I would refer everyone to Representative Matt Ruby, he carried this on the 
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House floor, his testimony is compelling. The committee dug up the real science. I’m a 
survivor of the opiate crisis. There is an ongoing study in Canada, can people replace opiate 
painkillers with cannabis? The answer is yes, in the 90th percentile of the people who were 
opiate users were able to fully stop using their opiates. I know there are studies to say 
cannabis is a gateway drug, but there is also plenty of relevant studies that say it’s not. I 
personally believe that alcohol and cigarettes are more of a gateway drug than cannabis is. 
The House committee did their due diligence, they vetted all of these. Representative Ruby 
stated that if we do adopt these new 13 conditions, we’ll be sitting between 27 and 29 
conditions. He did make note, that some of the older of the functioning systems, they have a 
lot more conditions. Even if we adopt these 13, we’re still going to be in the bottom third for 
all of the existing medical programs. In some of the more successful states, they allow their 
doctors to decide the condition. Oklahoma is an example; the doctor goes through the DSM. 
The question is why are legislators more qualified than doctors to choose 29 conditions out 
of the DSM. I believe that the Medical Marijuana division in previous testimony also 
mentioned they did their own study when it comes to conditions, and they came up with their 
own list of conditions they thought could or should be added. Nothing was done with that 
report.  
 
Vice Chairman Larsen: With this group, are there people who are embracing acupuncture 
as well to replace opioid use? 
 
Chris Nolden: I have tried acupuncture, dry needling, cupping, grafting, I’ve tried it, I haven’t 
tried it all. I’ve been on every single prescription known for my conditions. I’ve tried physical 
therapy, I continue to do physical therapy, I have to, I am open to any other natural treatments 
available.  
 
(22:04-24:02) Alexa Johnson, North Dakota citizen: I asked Representative Koppelman 
to introduce HB 1519. Ron is my son, he’s 9 years old, he’s the second of 6 children, he 
cannot speak, he bolts away from me in public, and has become physically aggressive. We 
moved to West Fargo after seven years in Williston. While in Williston, Ronnie developed 
severe insomnia, I would have to drive him around for 3-5 hours to get him to sleep, even on 
sleeping medication. When we left our rental in Williston, we spent $5,000 to repair the 
damage Ronnie did to sheetrock, carpet and countertops. I am honored to be his mother, but 
want better behaviors from him. Ronnie is on Prozac, it slightly curbs his anxiety, but not to 
the point that he lives a happy life. All over the nation, autistic patients are being treated with 
appropriate THC to CBD ratios so they don’t get high, that is not a parent’s goal. If medical 
cannabis does not become available to Ronnie, we have no idea where we will be as a family 
in the next few years. Additionally, I wish to address the concern that some may have 
concerning caregivers taking a patient’s cannabis and using it recreationally. Yesterday I 
called the West Fargo Police Department and asked what the going street price for marijuana 
is. It goes for $200 an ounce. The only dispensary in the state is selling medical cannabis for 
$400 an ounce. I do not believe that individuals seeking recreational cannabis will choose to 
overpay to that degree. The great trouble one must go through to obtain a medical marijuana 
card is another reason I don’t believe that will occur.  
 
Senator Clemens: You mentioned you need the cannabis for your son, has he been using 
some of that prior, so that you realize that that really does help him?  
 



Senate Human Services Committee  
HB 1519 
3/5/19 
Page 4  
   

Alexa Johnson: No, I would not give my child illegal drugs.  
 
Senator Clemens: So you are hoping that this would be one thing that could help. 
 
Alexa Johnson: Yes, we will have to try it and see. I’m not saying it will be a silver bullet, 
but I know people from other parts of the country, it’s been nothing short of miraculous for 
some people. I think it’s worth a shot.  
 
(25:45-30:36) Jennifer Cabezas, District 24 citizen. Testifying in support of HB 1519. 
Please see Attachment #3 for testimony. Additionally, one of my boys is on the maximum 
dose of one of his medications, and we have to fight the insurance company every month.  
 
(31:10-33:43) Rebecca Quinn, UND medical school. I manage the North Dakota brain 
injury network. Medical Marijuana wasn’t on my radar because the bill for hyperbaric oxygen. 
This isn’t a bill I have been dealing with. I have had several individuals request it. Senator 
Roers was wondering about which states have TBI listed: New Hampshire, Ohio, Illinois and 
Washington do all have traumatic brain injury in their included conditions. There is quite a bit 
of recent research, particularly around cannabinoids and brain injury. That has come up in 
my treatment group. There would be a possibility for the individual who sent the email to 
qualify under some other avenues, but one of the concerns I have, going forward and seeking 
treatment, sometimes it becomes difficult if you are trying to qualify as a symptom, but it is a 
symptom under a larger condition. Many of my individuals with brain injury have things like 
epilepsy, chronic pain, PTSD, those are considered conditions within the overarching brain 
injury condition.  
 
Madan Chair Lee: Are you comfortable at this point in recommending that TBI be added to 
the list? 
 
Rebecca Quinn: I would be comfortable with it being added to the list.  
 
(34:20-35:10) Kimberly Dworshak: I am the reason Ehlers-Danlos is on the list. There are 
12 sub Ehrlers-Danlos, you don’t have just one doctor, you have a team of specialists. I will 
email you some information on it.  
 
Madam Chair Lee closes the hearing on HB 1519.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to debilitating medical conditions and usable marijuana for minors under the medical 
marijuana program. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachments #1-5 

 
Madam Chair Lee opens the discussion on HB 1519. 
 
Madam Chair Lee: I did have an opportunity to visit with the three physicians who are the 
advisory council for the health department, Dr. Wynne, Dr. Nammour, and Dr. McClain. They 
had a conference call and then had a chance to hear to hear a bit of a report. They suggested 
that we consider studying some of the things that were included in coming from the house 
bill. That we not add all of the additional conditions and that we be careful about what is being 
requested for higher doses for pediatric treatments. I think it is important that we have that 
information to generate some discussion here about where we would like to go. Getting this 
programs feet on the ground, making sure that everything is running smoothly for the 
patients, caregivers, and the department and making sure that we have a well-oiled machine 
that is handling things. We have had a lot of discussion about Autism and I think that 
personally may be a hard one to leave out but some of the others for example, the opioid use 
disorder and withdrawal. It is not medically effective and should not be included. I’m a little 
uncomfortable with Ehlers-Danlos syndrome because we already have in line 12, “a chronic 
or debilitating disease or medical condition or treatment for such disease that produces one 
or more” and we have gone into severe debilitating pain, nausea, seizures, and so forth. 
There can be others that the department recognizes as having those conditions and 
symptoms that may also be considered. It seems to me the Mr. Wahl and the health 
department would have the opportunity to make some decisions as we move through there 
but including all of these may not be the right thing because somebody comes in and says 
they have this condition and wants it included. I’m not even sure that I have seen any 
information that was terribly convincing about the eating disorders but I am asking now.  
 
Senator K. Roers: I am fully on board with you with the opioid use disorder and the Ehlers-
Danlos, I did get a list of what other states have and I do have the list of what people have. I 
do see on quite a few states that they do have the eating disorders on there, I don’t know if 
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that necessarily makes it something that it should be but we would not be alone in that but it 
is not the most common either if that makes sense.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: The other thing to look at is we have a letter from Kurt Snyder 
(Attachment #1) and also from Dr. Henke who is the Medical Director over at Hartview 
(Attachment #2) and she is one of the experts that I have visited with and, talked about her 
expertise in this area.  
 
(04:48-05:57) Madam Chair Lee reads off the e-mail from Kurt Snyder in which he said 
that opioid withdrawal is a condition best treated by medical care and not medical 
marijuana.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Mr. Peterson had helped us with a list from other states which I have 
provided that to everybody to see what conditions North Dakota has (Attachment #3) and 
Mr. Nolden put together a list of all the conditions from all other states (Attachment #4).  
 
Senator K. Roers: I’m not sure how interstitial cystitis fit in here.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: I had a couple of discussions about auto-immune diseases and we do 
hear good about that we just need to be careful. Mr. Wahl had also given us an annual report 
from 2018 of their review of medical conditions and the results of the review which is 
attached. (Attachment #5) 
 
Senator O. Larsen: I guess I have been on the inception of this legislation that we allow it 
to get up and running and, you know there are only 120 cards or whatever still and in this 
piece of legislation in section two it is talking about that study to come forward and I know 
the therapy works on all that is listed here but, I still say that we have to let the people that 
are on the list get the cards to see how the operation is with it and gather more data on 
making the right choices on what to add to the list. I have a hard time expanding the list at 
all.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: If you look at the annual report and move to the back, a session law 
study requirement talks about several different things but looking at the chart, we are fairly 
consistent above ALS but then it is Alzheimer’s, Terminal Illness, Spinal Cord related 
conditions, Fibromyalgia, and the top ten conditions not listed in North Dakota law are; 
Multiple Sclerosis, Parkinson’s, Hep. C, Neuropathy related conditions, Tourette’s syndrome, 
TBI, Sickle Cell Anemia, Muscular Dystrophy, Huntington’s Disease, and Autism.  
 
Senator Hogan: That is so many of the ones that they added those criteria too; migraines, 
rheumatoid arthritis could fit that criteria. 
 
Senator O. Larsen: I haven’t heard of the engine used for applying medical marijuana to 
people who suffer from Autism. Is it in the pill form or whatever they so choose? 
 
Jason Wahl, Division of Medical Marijuana: Certainly when we did our review of the 
medical conditions which would have been last summer. I would say our conclusion was we 
are on more of the broad area in regards to the number of medical conditions when we 
compared the list at that point in time with other states. The list that you talked about, the ten 
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conditions not specifically listed in ND law, didn’t necessarily mean that they still won’t qualify. 
The paragraph underneath that chart actually goes into that detail and as the committee 
noted, there is a number of conditions currently in this bill that I can tell you we are already 
seeing in the program so even though it is not specifically listed, I have seen in the notes 
information from health care providers that have completed written certifications, migraines 
comes to mind. Migraines would qualify if that healthcare provider believed they could check 
that box in regards to the pain that is currently listed in state law. Our conclusion at that point 
in time that we did the study, we did not make any recommendations for the legislature to 
consider as far as expanding or reducing the list at this point in time.  
 
Senator O. Larsen: I didn’t know if that was answered. Is the operation of these folks with 
Autism, are they taking it in pill form? We still have the one medication that is insurance 
approved they could do that by the pill form anyway and then they don’t need none of this.  
 
Jason Wahl: The Autism is one of those that I would put as maybe very difficult under the 
current conditions that would qualify, from what we have read in relation to Autism, a lot of 
those studies are a high CBD type of strain being used in relation to treat or to provide to 
individuals with Autism which you are probably going to see in our program under the 
products of what was formerly known as tinctures and now cannabinoid solution. If it is a 
young child, they are able to put a couple of drops into that child’s drink or maybe have it so 
it’s whatever the dosage is under their tongue. It is going to depend on where some of the 
demand is too. If there is a request from two or three individuals for a specific type of product 
that has a certain formulation, that is very expensive at the manufacturing facility to try and 
make a handful of products as well. They have to be able to make it from an economy of 
scale standpoint and make the right products that fit a number of conditions so they know 
those products will be beneficial and that they will be sold.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Did any of you get an e-mail today from some vendor that is advertising 
CBD delivery devices? It sounded interesting to me. Any further questions for Mr. Wahl? 
 
Senator Hogan: Did you see the article that we got about this Autism? I think of the list that 
I saw, the two that I had questions on were the Autism spectrum disorder one and then we 
talked a bit last week about brain trauma.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: The only thing that is interesting about the Autism is that there are only 
four other states that have that.  
 
Senator Hogan: This is an interesting study, at least it has some study basis.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: I’m looking at the list on page two of the bill so we would be looking at 
potentially, we can discuss anyway, Autism spectrum disorder. Frankly, I’m opposed to opioid 
use disorder.  
 
Senator K. Roers: Did we decide if Rheumatoid Arthritis fits in that bottom line of chronic 
pain? I kind of went through just based on my own knowledge, Endometriosis is chronic pain 
so anxiety disorder, Tourette’s syndrome, and Autism spectrum see fitting into an existing 
category and then the opioid. The anorexia and bulimia that’s cachexia are wasting syndrome 
so they are already in. I think people want to see their condition so that it is black and white 
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but I think that it gets a little cumbersome. I do like some of the chronic and debilitating where 
it’s got a little bit broader instead of listing every possible disease. I think it opens it up more 
to people than closing it.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: I’m hearing that of the new list I heard anxiety disorder was mentioned 
and Autism and Tourette’s.  
 
Senator Hogan: Opioids are out and the rest are already in.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Exactly, so we would just be looking at an amendment that would delete 
all but the new stuff.  
 
Senator Hogan: The other thing that we heard in testimony was the discussion about brain 
trauma which isn’t on this list.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: PTSD and brain injury.  
 
Senator Hogan: Yes, those were the other testimonies that we heard.  
 
Senator K. Roers: If we are going to add stuff I think brain injury ranks higher than Tourette’s 
and anxiety.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: I’m going to make myself a note here about PTSD and brain trauma 
 
Jason Wahl: PTSD is already in the list.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: So it’s just brain injury. Jason, do you have any comments about 
Tourette’s and Anxiety disorder? 
 
Jason Wahl: I think if I heard right, Anxiety, Tourette’s, and Autism are the ones that you are 
kind of discussing, TBI post-concussion type or brain injury? 
 
Madam Chair Lee: Brain injury.  
 
Jason Wahl: I would say in relation to your current list, those ones would be a little bit harder 
to find where they could fit in, and its usually that last bullet currently in state law is where 
there is more of the interpretation. I’m checking my notes for those two that I had prepared 
and I think kind of what our thought was too as well that those may not be somewhere it 
would fall into that final category or into one of the specific ones above.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Any further questions for Mr. Wahl? 
 
Steven Peterson, Committee for Compassionate Care Chief Lobbyist: I just sent three 
e-mails to your clerk. One of those is from the Deputy Director of Medical Marijuana program 
in New Jersey, another one is from the Marijuana Policy Project, and then the third one is 
from the state of Minnesota because they have added opioid abuse and addiction. If you 
would review those three e-mails it would give you some more clarity on why those states 
are starting to add those. The other part of that is that seeing Sanford and other systems in 



Senate Human Services Committee  
HB 1519 
3/18/2019 
Page 5  
   

the state right now that are moving patients off of their opioid pain regimes right now. There 
are a couple of patients that have reached out to me and their doctors without discussing it 
to them, have been removing them from the pain programs. Those are things that we need 
to be aware of when we are looking at those two opioid aspects of this.  
 
Senator K. Roers: We are trying to reduce our opioid usage, is that what you are talking 
about when your saying removing people from? 
 
Steven Peterson: Right, from the CDC’s advice.  
 
Senator K. Roers: The severe debilitating pain, that they have been removed from their 
opioid regime from, they would then qualify through that category right? 
 
Steven Peterson: For that yes, I am not going to disagree with that assessment at all. 
Partially what I am looking at is, when we have the opioid abuse syndrome in there and opioid 
addiction, we can actually tie heroin addiction and use into the program and we have the e-
mails that I have sent that can address that and that is why other states are including that is 
because they are able to use this to step people off the heroin dependency without going into 
the Ceboxin or Methadone programs.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: Why would they not want to go into those? 
 
Steven Peterson: I don’t have a great answer for that.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: They get the drug payed for other than having to pay for it themselves. 
We have had in the last week and a half solid information provided to us about it not being 
effective for opioid withdrawal or opioid use disorders. That has kind of turned my feeling 
about that.  
 
Senator O. Larsen: Is that opioid listing, is that a suggestion or is that in law right now? Are 
they in the process in trying to make that law or is that already a law with the opioid issue? 
 
Steven Peterson: For Minnesota, I would have to look at the e-mail that I sent but for New 
Jersey, I do know that they have already included that in theirs.  
 
Senator O. Larsen: And passed? 
 
Steven Peterson: Yes.  
 
Senator Clemens: My opinion is, I would prefer that we move cautiously rather than going 
ahead with something that we are maybe not sure of, give this whole system to continue on 
and take a conservative approach. 
 
(23:30-25:36) The committee reviews the letter sent by Dr. Henke (refer to Attachment 
#2) on her recommendation on opioid withdrawal treatment with medical marijuana.  
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(25:02) Senator K. Roers: While they are reading the letter from Dr. Henke, do you have a 
strong statement one way or another on the Anxiety disorder and Tourette’s since they don’t 
really fit into another category? 
Steven Peterson: Having seen other states adding that, that is much as im going to be able 
to comment to that. My primary focus has actually been on the opioid issue, that is why I 
have been collecting data for that.  
 
(25:39) Senator Anderson: This whole argument about what list of conditions to put up here, 
we knew that these conditions were amendable to marijuana therapy we would have 
approved use for these drugs. This whole thing was originally based on that people thought 
it might help, they should have the opportunity to get it. So, personally I don’t have any 
reservations about adding a long list of things because the intention was that the people 
thought that these would be amendable to marijuana they should get it. It doesn’t bother me 
one way or the other because it’s all unproven therapy in the first place. I have some concerns 
when we do it with kids because I think we can cause some brain damage in the kids that we 
don’t really realize. Parents come in asking for marijuana for their kids, not realizing the long-
term problems that could cause, I’m not sure that is an acceptable risk but for the rest of 
these things, I appreciate Dr. Henke saying that it’s not proven therapy but neither are any 
of the rest of them. If it was proven therapy, then we would have approved drugs for those 
things.  
 
Madam Chair Lee: So much of what I have read talks about it being the drug of last result 
so to speak. If there isn’t any recognizing treatment that has worked that this is available. I 
would really hate to think that physicians who are using this first and finding it doesn’t work 
and there is a delay in an appropriate treatment that moves forward. That is why I struggle a 
bit about opening it up. What is your pleasure here, can we knock out the ones that are 
covered in another way? 
 
Senator K. Roers: I move that we eliminate M, N, Q, R, S, T, U, V, W, X, and add brain 
injury. 
Seconded by Senator Hogan 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE TAKEN 
 
5 YEA, 1 NAY, 0 ABSENT 
MOTION CARRIES TO ADOPT AMENDMENTS 
 
Senator K. Roers: I move a DO PASS, AS AMENDED 
Seconded by Senator Hogan 
 
Senator K. Roers: Is there any benefit to saying “shall study” instead or “shall consider”? 
 
Madam Chair Lee: I think as long as consider is there, I’m not fully comfortable in saying 
“shall study”. I think it has value and its sort of the protocol that works best.  
 
(32:43-33:51) Courtney Koebele walks into the committee and Madam Chair Lee 
updates her on what actions the committee has made so far on HB 1519. 
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ROLL CALL VOTE TAKEN  
 
5 YEA, 1 NAY, 0 ABSENT 
MOTION CARRIES DO PASS, AS AMENDED 
Senator K. Roers will carry HB 1519 to the floor.  
 
Madam Chair Lee closes the discussion on HB 1519. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
 
Relating to debilitating medical conditions and usable marijuana for minors under the 
medical marijuana program. 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman M. Ruby:  Opened conference committee on HB 1519. Please explain your 
reasoning for the amendments. 
 
(0:00:46) 
 
Senator Roers:  Looking at the original house bill.  As we walk through the bill anorexia and 
Bulimia fit under Cachexia, wasting syndrome.  So we felt that was already covered.  
Cachexia is the anorexia piece of it.   We added brain injury, a couple people brought that to 
us.  Ehlers-Danlos, the standard treatment was Tylenol and Aleve.  Rep. Ruby shared with 
me that it was a chronic disorder, so it may fit.  Interstitial cystitis acute can be treated with 
cranberry juice.  We felt those fit in another category, so we are trying to keep the one’s that 
can fit in under a broad category.  I think it will come down to opioid use disorder and 
withdrawal.  We heard from medical providers the only thing that will get rid of symptoms is 
having more of it.  So we also received information from Substance Abuse Mental Health 
Services Administration (SAMHSA)  and they had large concerns utilizing medical marijuana 
as further body confusion can occur which could be dangerous.  
 
Rep. Westlind:  Senator Roers, brain injury is pretty broad.  Should it be “traumatic” brain 
injury? 
 
Senator Roers:  The new terminology is to not include “traumatic” 
 
Rep. Westlind:  A person with a concussion could say, I have a brain injury from a 
concussion.  Should we add acute or chronic to be more specific? 
 
Senator Roers:  I do think it’s broad, and I do feel acute vs chronic would be good parameters 
to add. 
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Senator Anderson:  As far as the brain injury is concerned it would be good to narrow it 
down to a more specific condition.  Part of what we are trying to do is get people marijuana 
if it can help them.  Helping them with a more specific list is fine, but I would be opposed to 
including the withdraw and treatment of opioid abuse.  
 
Chairman M. Ruby:  We had that same conversation looking at the house side with all the 
ones that fall into the chronic category.  The reason we took it from the doctor’s opinion and 
felt that if we don’t list them, it puts the decision to the doctor.  Then we get back to the 
responsibility of the physician.  We didn’t find as much on the withdrawal of opioid usage but 
on the usage the in the opioid study there was a 17% increase of compulsive use when in 
the medical cannabis program, 5x more likely to reduce use on a daily basis.  This study was 
comprehensive.  There was a 30% decrease in benzos and 60% in opioids, including reduced 
cravings for heroin.  The opioid use itself was the big reason to get into medicinal marijuana 
to help those addicted get off opioids. 
 
Senator Roers:     When a chronic pain patient works with pain clinic there is a contract they 
sign.  Due to this contract, we may be adding more issues than we solve.  Per state, I can 
use it per pain contract I can’t.   So it becomes a problem and in my perspective, we aren’t 
ready for it yet.   
 
Rep. Westlind:  I can live with Chronic. 
 
Chairman M. Ruby:  We aren’t going to vote on the discussion today.  The question remains 
on thoughts on how to list them back in there?   
 
Senator Roers:  We are indifferent on how to list them.  We were trying to be on the side of 
simplicity. 
 
Chairman M. Ruby:  We put the study in so we have reference every year and so we can 
change the list if we want.  We can come back after we decide what we want.   
Hearing closed.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to debilitating medical conditions and usable marijuana for minors under the 
medical marijuana program. 
 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Members present: Rep. Ruby, Rep. Westlind, Rep. Damschen, Senator Roers, Senator 
Anderson, Senator Clemens 
 
Rep. M. Ruby, Chairman: Opened the conference committee meeting on HB 1519. We did 
have some discussion about whether or not we were going to limit down brain injury.   
 

Rep. Westlind: Talked to Jason Wahl, Director of the Medical Marijuana Division and he 
thought we should leave brain injury where it’s at, it includes all types of injury. 
 
Senator Roers:  I spoke to Rebecca Quinne at the UND brain injury network and she 
concurred with that as well. We said if we had to pick a word chronic is the once should be 
pick, but she preferred it to stay just brain injury. 
 
Rep. M. Ruby: As mentioned in the email we wanted to make sure we included stroke and 
stuff like that.   
 
Senator Anderson: I read most of the articles you sent out and why I’m opposed to opioid 
and opioid withdrawal use of marijuana.  The conclusion of one of the articles here said the 
compelling nature of these data and the relative safety profile of cannabis warrants further 
expiration of cannabis as an adjoin or alternative treatment for opioid use disorder. Discussed 
the news article in further detail.  I think we need to be careful to foster the public on 
something that has only been studied in mice.  When we say this might help and site these 
research articles; there is no studies in humans. I think we are jumping ahead if we say this 
should be included. 
 
Senator Roers:  I also received information from the Dept. Human Services, the behavior 
health part of it and they had done some research to try and figure out where other states 
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are at with this particular issue.  There are 8 states considered legislation and regulation with 
the following results:  states that currently allow medical cannabis for opioid use disorder and 
or opioid withdrawal; Pennsylvania, New Jersey, New York, and three states tried to pass it 
where the governor vetoed it.  It looks like we would be a leading edge here if we were to 
leave it as wide open as it is in the current form.   
 
Rep. Damschen: I would like to agree with previous statements with this being a bit broad.  Some 
links to the studies that were inconclusive in humans.  Some results have been reduction in pain in 
using the medical marijuana and that was compared to a placebo and not even with Tylenol. I can’t 
help to think if there was credible research to prove marijuana has helped the medical community 
would not be reluctant to recommend it. I’m not comfortable recommending it for these conditions to 
medical marijuana use under federal laws since the doctors cannot do it.  This legislation has a 
potential to mislead people with our laws.  I am opposed to this. 
 
Senator Roers:  One of the challenges is it is still illegal federally.  The ability to do research is limited. 
I’m uncertain how we move forward, but I would like to see where we are at on adding back the 
conditions. I would like to keep the two opioid ones out. 
 
 
Motion Made for the Senate recede from Senate amendments and amend as follows by 
Senator Roers; Seconded by Senator Anderson.  
 
Roll Call Vote:   6   Yes    0   No   0   Absent    Carrier: House:  Rep. Ruby; Senate: Senator 
Roers 
 

Rep. M. Ruby:  I would like to do a little more research on the opioid use. I think we are 
missing a big group of people on opioids. 
 
Closed. 
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